
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

Social Services, 
Housing and 
Public Health 
Policy Overview 
Committee 

  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
Wayne Bridges (Chairman) 

Jane Palmer (Vice-Chairman) 

Teji Barnes 

Peter Davis 

Becky Haggar 

Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana 

Peter Money 

Tony Eginton 

June Nelson 

Mary O'Connor (Co-Opted Member) 

 

 

   

Date: THURSDAY, 7 DECEMBER 
2017 
 

 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 6 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting 

 

  

Published: Wednesday, 29 November 
2017 

 Contact: Neil Fraser - Democratic 
Services Officer 
Tel: 01895 250692 
Email: Nfraser@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

This Agenda is available on the Council’s Intranet (Horizon) at:  
https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=324&Year=0 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use in the various meeting rooms.  
 
Attending, reporting and filming of meetings 
 
For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode. 
 
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 
 

 



 

 

SOCIAL SERVICES, HOUSING & PUBLIC HEALTH  
 
 
To perform the policy overview role outlined above in relation to the following matters: 
 

1. Adult Social Care 
2. Older People’s Services  
3. Care and support for people with physical disabilities, mental health problems 

and learning difficulties 
4. Asylum Seekers 
5. Local Authority Public Health services  
6. Encouraging a fit and healthy lifestyle  
7. Health Control Unit, Heathrow  
8. Encouraging home ownership  
9. Social and supported housing provision for local residents 
10. Homelessness and housing needs 
11. Home energy conservation  
12. National Welfare and Benefits changes 

 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1 Apologies for Absence and to report the presence of any substitute 
Members 

 
 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 6 November 2017 1 - 8 
 

4 To confirm that the items of business marked in Part I will be 
considered in Public and that the items marked Part II will be 
considered in Private 

 
 

5 Adult Safeguarding Board - Update Report Verbal 
Report 

 

6 Major Review - Loneliness & Isolation in Older Residents - 
Consideration of Draft Recommendations to Cabinet 

9 - 22 
 

7 Cabinet Forward Plan 23 - 26 
 

8 Work Programme 2017-18 27 - 30 
 



Minutes 

 

 

SOCIAL SERVICES, HOUSING AND PUBLIC 
HEALTH POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
6 November 2017 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 
 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Councillors: Wayne Bridges (Chairman) 

Jane Palmer (Vice-Chairman) 
Teji Barnes 
Peter Davis 
Becky Haggar 
Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana 
Tony Eginton 
Peter Money 
June Nelson 
Mary O'Connor (Co-opted Member) 
 

 OFFICERS PRESENT:   
 
Dan Kennedy - Deputy Director, Housing, Environment, Education, Health & 
Wellbeing 
Gary Collier - Health and Social Care Integration Manager 
Joan Veysey - Deputy Chief Operating Officer - CCG 

Sandra Taylor - Assistant Director Provider & Commissioned Care 
Manesh Patel - OPHS Operations Manager 
Neil Fraser - Democratic Services Officer 

30. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TO REPORT THE PRESENCE OF 
ANY SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 None. 
 

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS 
MEETING  (Agenda Item 2) 
 

 Councillor Palmer declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of item 6, as 
she had previously worked for TeleCare. Councillor Palmer advised that she 
would remain in the room when the item was discussed. 
 

32. TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 2 OCTOBER 
2017  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

 Members sought an update on the completion of the actions resulting from 
minute 26: Adult Safeguarding Board Annual Report. The clerk confirmed 
that he was awaiting an update from the officers in question. 
 
The Committee sought clarity on whether the Adult Safeguarding Board 
Annual Report was required to be presented at a Full Council meeting. It 
was agreed that the clerk would review the matter, and feed this back to 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



  

Members accordingly. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 2 October 2017 
be agreed as a correct record. 
  
 

33. TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED IN PART I 
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED 
PART II WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 It was confirmed that there were no Part II items, and that all business would 
therefore be conducted in public. 
 

34. 2017/19 BCF PLAN  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 Gary Collier, Health and Social Care Integration Manager, introduced a 
report updating the Committee on the Better Care Fund Plan 2017-19. Mr 
Collier was supported by Joan Veysey, Deputy Chief Operating Officer - 
CCG. 
 
The Committee was advised that the Better Care Fund Plan (BCF) for the 
2017/19 period was Hillingdon's third plan, and had now been approved by 
NHS England.  
 
The report outlined Hillingdon's performance against National Metrics, set by 
NHS England. While several targets had been missed, it was important to 
evaluate performance to target within the context of an aging population with 
increased complexity of need, and in these terms Hillingdon had done well 
to contain the level of growth and demand seen in the period. However, 
there was work still to be done to ensure performance continued to improve. 
 
While it had not been possible to deliver some of the key actions set out for 
the period 2016/17, much of the development work had taken place to help 
facilitate the delivery major of initiatives to be taken forward during the 
period 2017/19, such as integrated brokerage and integrated homecare. 
 
Members sought clarity on a number of points including: 
 
How were the delays in supporting the discharges from hospital for people 
with mental health needs being addressed?  
 
Processes to address the discharge of those with mental health issues were 
now being instigated much earlier. A new discharge management tool was 
now being used, which included regular meetings between mental health 
officers and housing officers. Whilst this was still a work in progress, 
improvements were starting to be seen. 
 
In addition, it was important to recognise that the data in the report set out 
the number of days that patients were delayed from being discharged, but 
not the number of individuals affected. People requiring specialist help were 
a relatively small number, but were often more challenging to find a suitable 
home setting and therefore could take a significantly longer amount of time 
to be discharged, thereby skewing the figures somewhat. 
 

Page 2



  

Why was Hillingdon still considering joining the Accountable Care 
Partnership (ACP)? 
 
This was related to the development of a business case, as the Council was 
required to be certain that there were no undue risks to the Council.  
 
NHS England required that the final BCF Plan was published by 11 
September 2017. Why had Hillingdon missed this deadline? 
 
Delays in publication were caused by local governance processes. The 
submission process guidance had been published by NHS England in July 
2017, with templates submitted later. Hillingdon was therefore required to 
develop the Plan in August 2017, and were not in a position to seek 
approval of the Plan until the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board in 
September 2017. Hillingdon was not the only authority in such a situation, 
and had been in regular dialogue with NHS England throughout the process. 
 
What was the reason for the decline in the emergency admittance of people 
aged 65 and over since 2014/15? 
 
This was in large part due to the increased effectiveness of early 
identification and the addressing of needs prior to them becoming 
emergencies, through primary care settings (GPs) and the use of the Care 
Connection teams. 
 
How was the initiative to electronically share data between Local Authorities 
progressing? 
 
This was proving to be a challenge, though was still being worked on. 
Members would be kept informed of the progress to delivery. 
 
Were there any challenges not set out within the report? 
 
Challenges included the complexity of the landscape, and the need to 
change organisation and patient culture while having a finite care workforce. 
The number of people requiring care was increasing, and it was challenging 
to ensure that the requisite number of people were in place to effectively 
manage that care.   
 
Were there any other areas identified that could host a local dementia 
resource centre, similar to Grassy Meadows? 
 
The Wren Centre was Hillingdon's current resource centre, and it was 
intended to move to Grassy Meadows in June 2018. Grassy Meadows 
would include 88 self-contained flats and included 24/7 on-site care and 
support provision.  Grassy Meadows was located centrally within the 
Borough, and would be used by local voluntary organisations for their own 
activity sessions.  
 
Park View in West Drayton was a second site, comprising 60 flats, to open 
in September 2018. Park View, similar to Grassy Meadows, would include 
on-site care and provision.  
 
Work was being undertaken to connect with local GPs, the Care Connection 

Page 3



  

team, and third sector voluntary groups, to publicise the facilities at the sites 
and build a full programme of services and activities for the whole year.  
 
Members provided feedback on behalf of residents, who were very pleased 
with both the Wren Centre and Yiewsley & West Drayton Community 
Centre, praising the timetable of activities and the caring and attentive staff. 
However, it was requested that further efforts be made to contact residents 
awaiting transport to the sites, in the event of a delay. Officers confirmed 
that there were mechanisms in place to contact waiting residents, and 
requested that further detail on specific cases be provided outside of the 
meeting. 
 
Members requested that future reports include details of Hillingdon's 
performance to targets versus statistical neighbours. Officers agreed that 
this would be looked into. 
 
RESOLVED:  That: 
 

1. The report be noted; and 
2. That the feasibility of including performance data against 

statistical neighbours be provided in future reports. 
 

35. UPDATE REPORT ON THE TELECARELINE  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

 Sandra Taylor, Assistant Director Provider & Commissioned Care, provided 
the Committee with an update on the TeleCareLine Services. Ms Taylor was 
supported by Manesh Patel, OPHS Operations Manager. 

 
The Committee was informed that the previous review into Assistive 
Technology was conducted in 2011, just after the inception of TeleCare 

within the Borough. Since then, the service had been offered for free to over 

85's, and extended in 2015 to a free service for all residents aged over 80. 
Service users continued to grow, with 4,949 users as at September 2017. 

Within this figure, the total number of TeleCareLine (TCL) users aged 80+ 

was 3,768. 
 
Service levels available to residents included: 
 
Standard - Level 1 - included standard unit, pendant, bogus caller button 
and monitored smoke detector with the resident having their own nominated 
responders in the event of an emergency. Level 2 included the same 
equipment but with LBH mobile response service. 
 
Enhanced - Level 3 - included the equipment in level 1 plus additional 
sensors to meet the needs of the client following an assessment e.g. falls 
detector, movement sensors, door sensors, again with the resident's own 
nominated responders, or Level 4 with LBH mobile response service. 
 
The TCL system was monitored 24/7 by the Council's TCL team who 
provided the first line response to all alerts raised. For residents who had 
their own nominated responder, the TCL monitoring team would make 
contact with them in an emergency.  Where emergency services were 
required, these would be instructed by the monitoring team. Residents who 

Page 4



  

did not have family or friends living close enough to act as an emergency 
responder could still benefit from TCL via the Council's mobile response 
service.  This support was provided by the Senior Reablement Carers 
between 8am and 10pm, and the dedicated night response officer, who 
would respond to call outs as required.  
 
An increase in enquiries had been seen relating to the smoke detector. The 
bogus caller button was rarely used, whereas the emergency call button, 
included within the home kit, was used frequently. Use of the Vega Watch 
was low, though the watch included functionality to provide GPS tracking, 
emergency calls, and zoning alerts, all of which were useful in locating the 
user and responding to them when required. The watch was often used in 
conjunction with door sensors, to provide an alert if the user left the property 
unexpectedly.  
 
Devices were tested regularly, with a daily report compiled that showed 
device usage. If a device had been seen to have been out of use for 36 
hours, the Council would receive an alert. Devices could be 'pinged' to 
ensure functionality, and calls would be made to users if devices remained 
inoperable. The TeleCare Line itself was subject to power cuts on occasion, 
though internal batteries in devices would ensure that these continued to 
work in the interim. Intermittent service issues often lasted for approximately 
1 hour, and in the event of longer outages, courtesy calls would be made to 
users. 
 
Technology within the marketplace was continuing to develop, including 
additional watch functions such as heart monitoring, useful in alerting of 
stroke or heart attack. Hillingdon was still assessing this technology, and 
likely would not adopt this for some time. Approximately 200 users were still 
on old systems, and the Council was looking to migrate those users to 
upgraded technology by the end of the year. 
 
Moving forward, the Out of Hours call handling service would in future be 
handled by an external company, AnchorCall, with a go-live date of 27 
November 2017. The Council would retain in-house front facing functions of 
the TeleCare service, including the processing of referrals, product support 
for staff and users, scheduling of new installations, booking 
maintenance/repair calls for the TeleCare equipment, and would continue to 
be first responders for alarm alerts, where applicable. 
 
AnchorCall had been fully vetted as part of due diligence to ensure their 
service was fit for purpose and would provide the requisite quality of care for 
residents. As part of this due diligence, the OPHS Operations Manager had 
visited the AnchorCall Contact Centre, and had confirmed that their 
technology was much more advanced than that of Hillingdon. A 
comprehensive disaster recovery programme was in place, staff were 
professional and competent, and this was borne out in their number of 
users, which was over 36k. 
 
Attention was drawn to the case studies set out in the appendices, which 
showed the value of technology in helping residents and carers to live more 
independent, happy lives.  
 
Members raised the possibility of using the TeleCare technology to help 

Page 5



  

residents alert the authorities in cases of domestic abuse. Officers confirmed 
that, in addition to the technology outlined previously, silent alarm buttons 
were available. All service users were informed that they were to use the 
alarms/alerts should they feel anxious, scared, or threatened in any way. 
Officers advised that they would be happy to discuss the matter with 
Members in more detail outside of the meeting. 
 
The Committee requested that officers elaborate on the use of TCL to help 
address the issue of loneliness and isolation in older residents of the 
Borough. Officers confirmed that the promotion of services and events such 
as dining centres, or use of community hubs such as Bell Farm Christian 
Centre, were historically more successful in addressing loneliness and social 
isolation than use of the TCL in general. However, these services and 
events were promoted though the TCL, and staff at the Contact Centre 
referred users of TeleCare to the relevant Council services, such as Social 
Care, or to other service providers such as Age Concern. Referrals could 
also be to Hospitals outside of the Borough. 
 
However, The TCL received comparatively fewer calls at night, which 
allowed staff more time to talk with users. This helped staff to get to know 
the users in more detail, and forge relationships with regular callers that 
could help address loneliness. In addition, the time also provided the 
opportunity to gather information to pass to social workers as part of the 
referral process. 
 
Members sought clarity on the number of residents using TeleCare aged 
under 80 years. Officers advised that this information could be provided 
outside of the meeting, but confirmed that there was a large focus on 
growing users aged 70-80, in an effort to have services in place before an 
individual's personal circumstances were in 'crisis'. 
 
Members suggested that more volunteers at the Contact Centre, and that 
further promotion of the services via social media platforms or Hillingdon 
People, would further improve quality of care and uptake of services. It was 
requested that this be considered as a potential recommendation to Cabinet 
as part of the current review into loneliness and social isolation in older 
residents. 
 
Members requested that a visit to the Contact Centre be arranged. 
 
RESOLVED:   
 

1. That the report be noted; 
2. That information on users of the TeleCare services aged under 

80 years be forwarded to members of the Committee; 
3. That the potential for increasing volunteers within the Contact 

Centre and further promotion of the service within relevant 
media platforms be considered as a potential recommendation 
to Cabinet as part of the review into loneliness and social 
isolation in older residents; and 

4. That a Member visit to the Contact Centre be arranged. 
 
 

Page 6



  

36. OLDER PERSONS SERVICE AT BELL FARM CHRISTIAN COMMUNITY 
CENTRE  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

 The Committee noted the report submitted by Jane Cook, Director of 
Projects at Bell Farm Christian Centre, following the Member visit held on 
Tuesday 17 October 2017. The Centre had been visited by Councillors 
Palmer, Nelson and Ahmad-Wallana. 
 
Councillor Palmer commended Ms Cook on the report, and the work of Bell 
Farm Christian Centre. Councillor Palmer confirmed that her visit to the 
Centre had been very positive, and that it was heartening to see residents 
having such a wonderful time. The staff at the Centre were commended for 
being friendly and welcoming, and in particular their willingness to go 'above 
and beyond' for their attendees. This included providing house visits for 
those who could not attend in person, shopping visits, and excursions. The 
Centre was frequented be a variety of people from several different cultures 
and backgrounds, and included attendees from wards other than West 
Drayton. 
 
Councillor Nelson echoed Councillor Palmer's feelings, and advised that the 
Centre was in need of a new urn in their kitchen. It was suggested that the 
potential for funding of this urn be looked into through the Cabinet Member 
budget, though Mrs O'Connor, co-opted member, advised that there was 
potential for her to fund the urn through her own budget, and requested that 
Councillor Nelson put the request in writing to her. 
 
Members advised that many of the good things being done at the Centre 
were mirrored at other sites within the Borough, such as the Yiewsley and 
West Drayton Community Centre, Abbots Football Club, and the Dovetail 
Community Baptist Church. It was felt that people often travelled long 
distances to these sites, because they were not aware of available sites 
within their local area. To allay this, it was suggested that increased 
promotion of the sites be considered as a potential recommendation to 
Cabinet as part of the current review into loneliness and social isolation in 
older residents. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 

1. That the report be noted; 
2. That the funding of the urn at the Centre through available 

budgets be looked into; and 
3. That further promotion of sites such as Bell Farm Christian 

Centre be considered as a potential recommendation to Cabinet 
as part of the review into loneliness and social isolation in older 
residents. 

 

37. CABINET FORWARD PLAN  (Agenda Item 8) 
 

 RESOLVED:  That the Cabinet Forward Plan be noted. 
 

38. WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18  (Agenda Item 9) 
 

 RESOLVED:  That the Work Programme 2017-18 be noted. 
 

Page 7



  

  
The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.27 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any 
of the resolutions please contact Neil Fraser - Democratic Services Officer 
on 01895 250692.  Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, 
the Press and Members of the Public. 
 

 

Page 8



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
- Major Review 2017/18 - Loneliness and Isolation in Older Residents 
 
 

Contact Officers: Neil Fraser 
Telephone: 01895 250692  

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM   
  
The Committee is asked to give consideration to the evidence given during the review, and 
to consider the proposed recommendations to Cabinet. 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE   
  
The Committee is asked to agree the proposed recommendations, and to delegate 
authority for the drafting of the Committee's final report to the clerk, under 
consultation with the Chairman. 
 
INFORMATION  
 

1. For Members information, the evidence presented at the meetings on 5 September, 
2 October and 6 November 2017, has been set out below. A further document will 
be circulated prior to the meeting which will outline the suggested 
recommendations, for Members to discuss. 

 
AIM OF REVIEW 
 

2. The following Terms of Reference were agreed at the outset of the review: 

a) To understand Hillingdon's current population demographic and the likely causes of 
loneliness and social isolation inherent to the local population; 

 
b) To examine how the Council services, health partners and voluntary sector groups 

identify and support those experiencing social isolation and the resultant impact on 
residents mental health, the lessons learnt and the success of any actions or 
activities undertaken; 
 

c) To examine relevant partnership working to identify opportunities to draw together 
the different strands of activities between health and social care in support of our 
wider health and wellbeing agenda and the aims of this review. 

 

d) To make practical, prudent recommendations to Cabinet (and other bodies if 
applicable) from the Committee’s findings to support residents experiencing 
extreme loneliness and social isolation. 

The Committee was provided with information at a number of witness sessions: 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

MEETING HELD ON 5 SEPTEMBER 

 

3. Gary Collier - Health & Social Care Integration Manager, supported by Nina 
Durnford - Assistant Director, Older People & Physical Disabilities, and Kevin Byrne 
- Head of Health Integration and Voluntary Sector Partnerships, advised the 
Committee of the strategic context of the review, which included the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy and the Better Care Fund (BCF), subsequently presented at the 
meeting held on 6 November. The Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2018/21 was to 
be brought to the Health and Wellbeing Board in September, and once approved, 
would be put into effect. The Strategy would implement the Hillingdon aspect of the 
North West London Sustainability and Transformation Plan and has three key aims: 

 

• Improving health & wellbeing; 

• Improving care & quality; and 

• Improving productivity & closing the financial gap.  
 

5.  Reducing social isolation was listed as one of the priorities within the Strategy. 
Hillingdon's Better Care Fund Plan (BCF), which was a government scheme 
intended to deliver better health and care outcomes for residents through 
integration between health and social care, included actions that would contribute to 
meeting this priority.  The 2017/19 BCF plan included six schemes but scheme 1, 
entitled 'Early intervention and prevention', included actions that were relevant to 
the Committee's review and these included:  

 

• Improving access to information and advice to enable residents to help themselves; 

• Risk stratification to identify people at risk of escalated needs earlier; 

• Developing the third sector preventative role; and 

• Keeping older people physically active, therefore supporting both physical and 
mental wellbeing 

 
6.   Early intervention was felt to be key to reducing instances or mitigating the effects 

of social isolation, and work was ongoing about how best to ensure residents were 
able to find the services available to them. It was likely that partnership working with 
the voluntary sector would be important. 

 
7.  The role of adult social care in identifying social isolation, and the process for 

residents to access care and support, was outlined. The Committee was informed 
that social care assessments included a review of the resident's needs, their family 
circumstances, what pastimes they enjoyed, and activities that interested them. 
Care plans for people with eligible social care needs could include referrals to 
partners such as Age UK or other community based organisations and support to 
access locally run activities.  Personal budgets for people with eligible social care 
needs can be used creatively to support with external trips, such as fishing or the 
cinema, depending on their needs and preferences  There was also the opportunity 
to refer older residents to services provided by Age UK Hillingdon, such as their 
befriending services, and also to other locally run activities.  

 
8.   In order to support the safety of older residents, the Council provided free access to 

the TelecareLine for residents aged 80+. This service wass also available to people 
aged under 80 for a weekly charge.   

 

Page 10



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

9. The Committee was informed about the Leader's Initiative.  This had been 
established by the Leader of the Council in his capacity as Hillingdon's Older 
People's Champion, and was intended to address practical issues identified by 
older residents that will help to improve their quality of life. 

 
10. Projects run through the Leader's Initiative had included free installation of burglar 

alarms for older residents, as well as various group activities. This year, activities 
had included the Barnhill Community summer trip and the Bell Farm Christian 
Centre coach trip. Additionally, smaller activities such as fish and chip suppers were 
run to help residents come together and socialise. The cost of such activities was 
less than £1,000 per activity. 

 
11. Dr Anil Raj of St Martin's Medical Centre advised the Committee from the 

perspective of a General Practitioner.  
 

12. Dr Raj confirmed that he had been a General Practitioner for approximately 5 
years, and in those 5 years he had seen significant change within GP practices. 
Previously, GPs worked predominantly in isolation to other support services, and 
were often only made aware of a patient's circumstances when that patient was 
admitted to hospital. However, this was changing in Hillingdon due to the new 
development of integrated care which allowed GP's to proactively share information 
and foster closer ties with community care programmes and activities. A patient 
who was now considered to be socially isolated and/or lonely could be referred 
directly to nearby community programmes or services. 

 
13. Care Connection Teams had been formed and piloted in the north of the Borough 

and were being extended to the rest of the Borough. There would be a total of 15 
teams, once fully operational.  The teams included a community matron who saw 
patients with chronic illnesses such as asthma, diabetes and dementia, and who 
was being trained to be able to proactively prescribe medication and care solutions, 
under consultation with the GP. In addition, the teams included a care coordinator 
who was involved in care planning and administration.  

 
14. The teams met weekly, and patients deemed to be at risk were highlighted through 

practice intelligence from GP surgeries, together with dashboard tools and a risk 
identification system which incorporated data such as hospital admissions and 
medication, together with a frailty index tool. From these meetings, patients deemed 
to be risk are offered proactive care management in order to prevent escalated 
needs.  Prevention can include a referral to the H4All Wellbeing Service. 

 
15. The caseload for a single Care Connection team was approximately 50 patients, 

across several practices, and 15 teams, covering 44 practices, had signed up to the 
Care Connection scheme. New matrons and care coordinators had been recruited, 
and the teams would now be a key point of call for GPs. Although this initiative 
remained a work in progress, testimony from GP's showed that they were enthused 
at helping to better support patients suffering from poor health or depression due to 
loneliness and isolation. 

 
16. Julian Lloyd, CEO Age UK - Hillingdon, and Steve Curry, Hillingdon 4 All (H4All), 

addressed the Committee on the work of H4All, a collaboration between 5 third 
sector charities: Age UK, DASH, Hillingdon Carers, Hillingdon Mind, and Harlington 
Hospice, funded by Hillingdon's Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). 

Page 11



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

 
17. H4All was delivering an enhanced provision of the former Primary Care Navigator 

Service (PCN) that was previously provided by Age UK Hillingdon. This included a 
free service working with local GP surgeries to support Hillingdon patients aged 65 
and over with long term health conditions, including supporting people experiencing 
social isolation and/or loneliness. 

 
18. The Committee was provided with some key statistics relating to social isolation 

and loneliness taken from several reports commissioned by groups such as Age UK 
and DWP: 

 
19. Isolation 

 

• 3.5 million people aged 65+ live alone  

• Over 2 million, or nearly half (49%), of all people aged 75 and over live alone.  

•  9% of older people feel trapped in their own home.  

•  6% of older people (nearly 600,000) leave their house once a week or less.   

•  30% say they would like to go out more often.  

•  According to research for DWP, nearly a quarter (24%) of pensioners do not go out 
socially at least once a month.  

•  Nearly 200,000 older people in the UK do not receive the help they need to get out 
of their house  

 
20. Loneliness 

 

• A 2015 study has indicated that loneliness can increase your risk of premature 
death by up to a quarter.  

•  Loneliness can be as harmful for our health as smoking 15 cigarettes a day.  

• People with a high degree of loneliness are twice as likely to develop Alzheimer’s 
than people with a low degree of loneliness.  

• 1.7% or 200,000 older people (65 and over) have not had a conversation with 
friends or family for a month.  

• 3.1% or 360,000 older people (65 and over) have not had a conversation with 
friends or family for over a week.  

• 12.04% or 1.2 million older people (65 and over in England) are 
persistently/chronically lonely.  

 
21. Academic research had determined that the impact of loneliness on health was the 

equivalent of smoking 15 cigarettes per day. Preventing and alleviating loneliness 
was therefore vital to enabling older people to remain as independent as possible, 
and therefore reduce the need, and cost, for health and social care services.  

 
22. Referral routes open to partners included: 

 

• Self referral  

• Relative or friend  

• Statutory provider    

• Neighbour  

• Voluntary sector provider   

• GP  
 

Page 12



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

23. The number of referrals was seen to be lowest through self referrals, and 
somewhat higher through relatives or friends or well recognised brands such as 
Age UK. New referral pathways through the Care Connections team and GPs, as 
outlined above, would help to bring new people into the system and enable better 
identification, assessment, and triage. This was helped by H4All having a shared 
record system to enable easy, efficient sharing of information. 

 
24. For those older residents referred, sector interventions included: 

 

• Information, Advice & Support  

• Practical support e.g. welfare benefits, falls prevention, counselling, home help, 
transport  

• Befriending, Just to Talk, Good Neighbours  

• Wide range of support, activity and social groups  

• Individual Motivational Interviewing, Goal Setting and ongoing support to manage 
long term conditions  

• Transport to Clubs & Groups (limited)  

• Access to wider Voluntary & Statutory Services  
 

25. The aim was to refer residents to 'doorstop' services to preclude the need for 
personal transport and enable greater attendance. Libraries were often used as a 
meeting point for activities due to their location and ease of access for a majority of 
residents. The impact of these services was being measured in a variety of ways, 
including motivational interviewing and goal setting, an Outcomes Framework, and 
the Campaign to End Loneliness Outcomes Measurement Tool. 

 
26. Looking forward, H4All was reviewing how other groups were run, to identify and 

implement new models of working. For example, more traditional befriending 
services, while valuable, were often on a one to one basis and designed to support 
the achievement of a particular goal. As such, these were difficult to scale within 
existing models. Previous questionnaires issued by the Wellbeing service had found 
that traditional models were often focussed on people already engaged with 
services, and so new thinking was being employed to find and work with people 
who had a lower level of activation. Work was also being undertaken to identify 
new, more cost effect and self-sustaining working models.  

 
27. Regarding why GP's were previously only aware of a patient's circumstances upon 

that patient being admitted to hospital, and why GPs were not aware of what 
voluntary or community services were available to their patients, Dr Raj confirmed 
that while new GPs underwent lengthy training to prepare themselves for the role, 
they would only be made aware of patient circumstances and the services available 
to patients if they were proactive in engaging with the local community. Work was 
now being undertaken to develop GPs who had a specialist interest or a willingness 
to engage further. It was also recognised that the prevalence of locum GP's, who 
were only present at practices for a short time, did not allow for the continuity of 
care that a more long term GP could provide. However, GP's were more likely to 
stay for longer, if provided more detailed training. In addition, the fact that all 44 
surgeries had signed up to the Care Connection, reporting to H4All as a single point 
of access, would result in a more efficient use of GP time and a better level of 
information sharing that would ultimately benefit patients. 

 

Page 13



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

28. The issue of engaging with those residents for whom English was not their first 
language was raised. In response, the Committee was informed that further 
outreach was needed, to ensure people were made aware of the benefits of the 
services. For those without English, faith groups were often useful in helping this 
message to be spread. However it was recognised that languages were an issue 
and attempts had therefore been made to recruit multilingual staff. On the 
suggestion that literature be provided to religious locations such as mosques, for in-
house translation, it was agreed that literature could be made available upon 
request. It was agreed that Mr Kevin Byrne would forward a selection of booklets, 
detailing all available services, to Councillor Ahmad-Wallana for dissemination. 

 
29. The Committee raised the question of counselling, and whether elderly residents 

who had experiences a significant event, such as the bereavement of a spouse, 
were spoken to. Members were informed that several counselling services existed, 
such as through Hillingdon Mind. In addition, volunteers at service groups were 
often elderly, and it was recognised that their participation was not only beneficial 
for themselves, but their presence and word of mouth could help to draw in other 
attendees.  

 
MEETING HELD ON 2 OCTOBER 
 

30. Sarah Durner - Senior Officer, Sport and Physical Activity, informed the Committee 
that the current Wellbeing events model began in 2012, with tea dances held at the 
Civic Centre. Feedback to the dance was good, and efforts were then made to look 
for creative ways to further engage with older people. Following focussed promotion 
within sheltered housing, care homes, social care and local organisations such as 
Age UK and Hillingdon Carers, the programme of events was expanded and a 
database of older people was compiled, to enable residents to be invited to future 
events. The database was maintained and added to, and currently held details of 
over 300 people, of whom approximately 180 regularly attended events each 
month. 

 
31. The aim of such events was to promote local opportunities and provide access to 

try new things in a fun, safe, and socially engaging way, to offer information and 
advice about other services available, and to develop new locally based activities 
such as chair exercise and dementia coffee mornings. A more targeted approach 
included events for the housebound, the Ghurka community, and for residents living 
with dementia or Alzheimer's. Attendees were often invited via referrals from 
partners and agencies such as social care, and if necessary, transport to the venue 
was included. Venues included libraries, community centres, and the Civic Centre. 
 

32. Events included: 
 

• Tea dances 

• Day of the Older Person 

• Dance for the over 65's 

• Art Workshops 

• Drumming sessions 

• Coffee mornings 

• Healthy walks 

• Intergenerational reminiscence 

• Music and flower festivals 

Page 14



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

 
Variety of events was felt to be key. 

 
33. From experience running the events, and feedback from attendees, officers had 

learned that older people wanted a regular, safe, local and fun activity, where they 
got to know people, and where they were not asked too many questions. In 
addition, it was requested that older residents receive assistance when they wanted 
it, and when they needed it, with particular reference to receiving help with booking 
event attendance, arranging transport, inviting friends, being referred, or obtaining 
information on other available services. Continuity of attendance was key, as it was 
important for the older people to see the same faces and forge lasting relationships. 

 
34. Flexible booking systems were of paramount importance, and while online booking 

forms were available, it was understood that older people may not have access to a 
computer, or have the confidence in using online tools. Additional telephone 
booking was therefore available, whilst officers would also accommodate verbal 
requests in person, which was useful in building rapport and trust between the 
Council and its residents. 

 
35. Officers had noted that transport was not always needed, for example transport 

provision had been made available for a number of tea dances, but the uptake was 
small. However, for events targeted at housebound residents, transport was 
required. Officers recognised that once someone had made the initial step to come 
to one activity, it was likely that they would come to more activities, and that  
making an attendee feel welcome was most important.   The Council was actively 
promoting opportunities to those residents who were the most isolated, for example 
through GP navigators, social care referrals, or word of mouth. It was important that 
older people had something to look forward to. 

 
36. The Committee was shown feedback from a number of older people, including 

video testimony, all of which was very positive. Highlights showed that attendees 
valued laughter, physical exercise, meeting former friends, and making new friends. 
The events were particularly valued in instances where attendees had experienced 
the loss of a partner. Feedback to activities such as intergenerational reminiscence 
had shown that the older people liked to feel valued, and to feel that their 
knowledge and experience was useful in helping younger people to learn skills.  

 
37. Targeted events had been developed within the last five years, with the aim of 

reaching the lonely, early. Engagement was now in place with bereavement 
services, GP's, Hillingdon 4 All, and via newspapers, leaflets, flyers, and transport 
services. School engagement was felt to be a big opportunity for further 
improvements, and schools were interested in engaging with the Council with a 
view to increasing intergenerational events. However, this needed more promotion. 

 
38. The Safer Neighbourhoods team was helping to engage with communities, such as 

the Somali Community. In Hayes, the Somali community was approached and 
invited to coffee mornings, whilst contact had been made with Asian women's 
groups. In addition, targeted events were being promoted to appeal to specific 
cultural groups, such as Bollywood Dances as an alternative to the tea dances. 
Groups who had limited English language were challenging to engage with, and it 
was recognised that further work to engage with these communities was required.  

 

Page 15



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

39. Jackie Westbrook - Manager, Yiewsley and West Drayton Community Centre 
(YWDCC) addressed the Committee, and confirmed that her presentation was 
supplemental to the comprehensive information provided by Sarah Durner, and 
would therefore focus on YWDCC.  

 
40. Members were advised that community centres were important social hubs for 

older residents. Attendees would often promote the Centres via word of mouth, for 
example when speaking to people they had met on public transport. In the last two 
months, YWDCC had registered 4 new members. 

 
41. Brunel University had recently supplied four student volunteers who had attended 

one of the tea dances held at TWDCC. The older people had enjoyed the students' 
company, and had encouraged them to dance. In instances where the students did 
not know how to dance, the older people had taught them. Feedback from the older 
people was that this had made them feel useful, and that their contribution was 
valued.  

 
42. Daniel Waller, Senior Library Services Manager, advised the Committee on 

Hillingdon's Library services, which comprised 17 Libraries, a Mobile Library, and a 
Home Library Service. The libraries contain free computer use and wi-fi, together 
with a wide range of stock including large print, talking books, e-books, newspapers 
and magazines. Libraries were open 6 days a week, for long hours. Two libraries 
were open on Sundays, and many online services were accessible from home. 

 
43. Library usage was not specific to age or communities. General usage figures 

showed total visits of 1.6 million per year, with an active membership of 67,000 
(22% of population). Over 5,000 events were hosted by Libraries per annum, 
attended by over 100,000 people (many of whom were older people.) Data on the 
ethnic diversity of attendees was not available, though it had been recognised that 
events were appealing to a wide variety of residents. 

 
44. Libraries were popular due to being a safe, trusted, accessible space, that 

promoted a sense of community and belonging that often became a community 
hub. Staff would get to know and forge relationships with regular attendees. Staff 
were provided with training to ensure an awareness of mental health and dementia, 
in order to better help residents.  

 
45. Over the last 12 months, the number of 60+ year olds who were active members of 

Hillingdon libraries was 8,902. The number of library members in total was 68,616. 
Therefore, 13% of active library users were over 60 years old. This compared to 
13% of the population being over 65, and so the level of library usage was 
proportionate to the resident population. The figures above were based on people 
borrowing a library book in the last year, so whilst indicative they will not capture 
those library users that come into libraries but use them for purposes other than 
borrowing books.  

 
46. Partners using libraries to hold events included: 

 

• Adult Learning 

• Sport and Physical Activity Team  

• Green Spaces 

• Hillingdon Dementia Alliance 

Page 16



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

• Mind 

• Dash 

• Alzheimer's Society  

• Other council services needing to meet residents 
 

47. Events held at libraries included: 
 

• Coffee mornings 

• Knit and Natter groups 

• Chairobics  

• Zumba  

• IT for older people 

• Reading Groups 

• Writing Groups 

• Author talks – including Culture Bite 

• Reminiscence sessions 

• Local History Talks 

• Healthy heart month 
 

48. The Silver Sunday, held at Botwell Green library, was part of a national campaign 
to combat social isolation in older people and celebrate their contribution to society. 
Held on the first Sunday in October, a group of 30 older residents from Age Link 
were invited. Children made cards for the older people which were gratefully 
received. The event included singing, refreshments and health checks from a local 
pharmacy.  

 
49. IT for Older People was a free session held at Northwood Hills library, to help older 

people become proficient with computers. Run by volunteers, users were helped 
with hand and eye co-ordination (vital to use a tablet or computer mouse), before 
being helped to use the internet to explore their particular interests or hobbies. 
Information was provided to help guard against cyber-crime which may help to allay 
any fears that a newcomer might have about use of the internet. The sessions 
helped to create an opportunity for interaction between the participants, as well as 
the staff. Similarly, the Uxbridge Digital Drop-In Session provided informal help with 
computing and technology via volunteer students from Brunel University. 

 
50. The Sow and Grow cross-generational scheme had been operating out of Yeading 

Library for the last 9 months, and allowed residents to grow their own fruit and 
vegetables. Public consultations were often held on library site, which gave older 
residents a chance to engage with their community, have their voice be heard, and 
make a contribution to the workings of the town. 

 
51. Specialised library services, aiming to mitigate loneliness and isolation, included 

the Mobile Library, which delivered to 23 roadside sites every week, as well as 
schools, nurseries, day centres and residential and sheltered homes.  

 
52. The home library service visited 150 housebound users, with visits every 4 weeks. 

The services provided vital social contact for the most isolated residents, and helps 
people to continue to live at home and maintain independent living. 

 

Page 17



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

53. Members suggested that more libraries be open on Sundays. Mr Waller confirmed 
that limited Sunday openings were due to budgetary reasons. If further sites were 
opened on Sunday, it was likely that operating hours on the other days of the week 
would have to be reduced.  
 

54. Vivian Ellis, Arts and Health Researcher, addressed the Committee on the topic of 
'Singing for Social Connection'.  
 

55. Ms Ellis had been commissioned by the Director of Imperial College GP Training to 
run an education in arts for health for Hillingdon GP's. Originally trialled, the training 
was repeated for 48 student GPs in years 1, 2 and 3 at Guys & St Thomas (Nov 
2016), as well as via workshops in arts for health with GP trainers from South 
London (Sept 2016) and South West London (June 2017). 
 

56. Two monthly singing groups for health were being run in Northwood: 'Singing for 
the Soul' (singing for wellbeing) and 'Memory Matters' (for people with dementia 
living at home) both at Northwood and Pinner Liberal Synagogue.  
 

57. A free, weekly drop-in singing group for mental health at The Dragon Cafe, is held 
in St George the Martyr Church in Southwark.  The Dragon Cafe was user-led, and 
delivered by a small paid team plus volunteers, with the aim of providing a relaxed, 
social, non-medical, diverse, multi-generational setting. 
 

58. The groups provided singing, dancing, and chatting, as well as chair-based yoga 
which had been seen to increase movement, which in turn allowed individuals to 
regain their independence. Health benefits of singing groups included fast social 
bonding and positive experiences, which helped to mitigate against loneliness, 
isolation, and the resulting depression that this caused. 
 

59. Christopher Geake, Director of Hillingdon Mind, set out mental health in the context 
of social isolation and loneliness. 
 

60. The Committee was informed that the World Health Organisation defined mental 
health as: 

• A state of complete physical, mental and social well-being, 

• and not merely the absence of disease, 

• in which every individual realizes his or her own potential, 

• can cope with the normal stresses of life, 

• can work productively and fruitfully, 

• and is able to make a contribution to her or his community. 

61. According to the Social Care Institute for Excellence (SCIE)'s report from 2016, 
mental health and emotional well-being were as important in older age as at any 
other time of life. Most older people had good mental health, but older people were 
more likely to experience events that affect emotional well-being, such as 
bereavement or disability. 
 

62. The Department of Health estimated that: 
  
40 % of older people seeing their GP 
50 % of older people in general hospitals 

Page 18



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

60 % of care home residents 
 
have a mental health problem. 
 

63. For the purposes of the review, the mental health issues most commonly seen in 
older people, due to loneliness and isolation, were depression and anxiety. 
 

64. According to a report titled (“Look after your mental health in later life” by the 
Mental Health Foundation: 2016), helpful approaches to mental and emotional 
wellbeing included: 

• Being prepared for changes 

• Talking about problems and concerns 

• Asking for help 

• Thinking ahead and having a plan 

• Caring for others 

• Keeping in touch 

• Being active and sleeping well 

• Eating and drinking sensibly 

• Doing things that you enjoy 

• Relaxing and have a break 

65. 'Connecting' was seen as the fundamental and principle antidote to loneliness, 
isolation, and mental health issues. This included connecting with the self, 
connecting with others, and connecting with support. 
 

66. Connecting with self: 

Issues Recommended Action 

• feeling of low esteem and 
worthlessness 

• loss of family or social role 

• disappointments and 
disillusionment 

• loss and bereavement  

• physical ill-health 

• addictions 

 

• reminiscence work 

• dealing with loss and 
bereavement 

• working through positive 
and negative experiences 
and feelings 

• replacing shame and 
assumptions of guilt with 
compassionate acceptance 

• counselling and talking 
therapies 

• volunteering 

 

67. Connecting with others: 

Issues Recommended Action 

• social isolation and 
emotional isolation 

• isolation through rejection 

• self-isolation as distraction 

• keeping in touch or 
reconnecting 

• social clubs, recreational 
activities, learning activities  

Page 19



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

• feeling of inadequacy or 
low self-esteem 

• ill-health, disability, abuse 
addictions, low self-
esteem 

• befriending 

• social media – Facebook, 
Skype 

• volunteering  

68. Connecting with support: 

Issues Recommended Action 

• Independence 

• not acknowledging need 
for support 

• not knowing where to go 
for support 

• not being physically or 
emotionally able to 
engage 

• motivational work 

• planning for later life  

• drawing upon social capital 
and community networks. 

 

69. When people with mental health issues were asked where they went for support, 
feedback showed that the most valued support received was from family members, 
neighbours, friends, colleagues, local community associations, college classes, 
libraries, and faith communities. It was important to recognise that whilst there were 
appropriate medical responses to clinical conditions; most of the issues of 
loneliness and isolation were not clinical. 
 

70. People say they wanted the following support: 

• how to maintain good integrated health and well-being 

• support at the right time – the earlier the better 

• where to go for the right support 

• how to get support quickly 

• how to self-manage their health and well-being 

• how to address social isolation and its causes 

• peer support from other people with “lived experience” 

• challenge stigma and discrimination 

71. Hillingdon MIND offered the following: 

• groups and social clubs 

• culturally specific support 

• (South Asian, Somali, Afghan, Nepalese, Tamil, LGBT) 

• befriending 

• counselling and psychotherapy 

• information and sign-posting 

• mental health awareness 

• anger management  

• volunteering 

• peer-support 

• (women’s and men’s groups, Creative Minds, “Hearing Voices”, Creative 
Writing, walking) 

Page 20



 
Part I - Members, Public and Press 

 
Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 

 

• substance misuse and addictions 

• carers 

MEETING HELD ON 6 NOVEMBER 
 

72. At this meeting, Sandra Taylor, Assistant Director Provider & Commissioned Care, 
provided the Committee with an update on the TeleCareLine (TCL) Services. Ms 
Taylor was supported by Manesh Patel, OPHS Operations Manager. While the 
presentation was provided as a general informational item, updating the Committee 
on developments within the TeleCareLine service since the previous review into 
Assistive Technology, it was felt that the information could be considered as part of 
the ongoing review into Loneliness and Isolation. 

 
73. The Committee requested that officers elaborate on the use of TCL to help address 

the issue of loneliness and isolation in older residents of the Borough. Officers 
confirmed that the promotion of services and events such as dining centres, or use 
of community hubs such as Bell Farm Christian Centre, were historically more 
successful in addressing loneliness and social isolation than use of the TCL in 
general. However, these services and events were promoted though the TCL, and 
staff at the Contact Centre referred users of TeleCare to the relevant Council 
services, such as Social Care, or to other service providers such as Age Concern. 
Referrals could also be to Hospitals outside of the Borough. 

 
74. The TCL received comparatively fewer calls at night, which allowed staff more time 

to talk with users. This helped staff to get to know the users in more detail, and 
forge relationships with regular callers that could help address loneliness. In 
addition, the time also provided the opportunity to gather information to pass to 
social workers as part of the referral process. 

 
75. There were 1,335 users aged below 80 years who were currently using TeleCare 

enabled equipment. There was a large focus on growing users aged 70-80, in an 
effort to have services in place before an individual's personal circumstances were 
in 'crisis'. 

 
76. Members suggested that more volunteers at the Contact Centre, and that further 

promotion of the services via social media platforms or Hillingdon People, would 
further improve quality of care and uptake of services. It was requested that this be 
considered as a potential recommendation to Cabinet as part of the current review 
into loneliness and social isolation in older residents. 

 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Part I - Members, Public and Press 
 

Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 
 
 

CABINET FORWARD PLAN 
 

Contact Officer: Neil Fraser 
Telephone: 01895 250692 

 
 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 

 
The Committee is required to consider the Forward Plan and provide Cabinet with any 
comments it wishes to make before the decision is taken. 
 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 

 
1. Decide to comment on any items coming before Cabinet 

 
2. Decide not to comment on any items coming before Cabinet 
 

 
INFORMATION 
 
1. The Forward Plan is updated on the 15th of each month. An edited version to include 

only items relevant to the Committee’s remit is attached below. The full version can 
be found on the front page of the ‘Members’ Desk’ under ‘Useful Links’. 

 
 
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 

 
1. Members decide whether to examine any of the reports listed on the Forward 

Plan at a future meeting. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Ref 

Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s) 

Final 
decision 
by Full 
Council 

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible 

Officer 
Contact for 
further 
information 

Consultation 
on the 
decision 

NEW 
ITEM 

Public / 

Private 

Decision 

& 

reasons  

SI = Standard Item each month                                                                                                
Council Departments:  RS = Residents Services    SC = Social Care   AD = Administration    FD= Finance   

Cabinet - 14 December 2017 

200 2017/19 Better 

Care Fund Plan 

Section 75 

Agreement 

Cabinet will be 

asked to approve 

the agreement 

with Hillingdon 

Clinical 

Commissioning 

Group, that will 

give legal effect to 

the financial 

arrangements in 

the 2017/19 Better 

Care Fund plan 

approved by the 

Health and 

Wellbeing Board. 

All  Cllr Philip 
Corthorne 

SC - Gary 
Collier 

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Board, 
CCG 

 Public 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

5



P
a
g
e
 2

6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



  Part I - Members, Public and Press 
 

Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 
 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 

Contact Officer: Neil Fraser 
Telephone: 01895 250692 

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans. This 
is a standard item at the end of the agenda. 
 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To note dates for meetings  2017/18 
 

2. To make suggestions for future working practices and/or reviews for the year 
2017/18. 

 
 
INFORMATION 
 
All meetings to start at 7.00pm 
 
 

Meetings  Room 
28 June 2017 - CANCELLED CR 6 

20 July 2017 CR 6 

5 September 2017 CR 6 

2 October 2017 CR 6 

6 November 2017 CR 5 

7 December 2017 CR 6 

23 January 2018 CR 6 

27 February 2018 CR 6 

22 March 2018 CR 6 

 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 27



  Part I - Members, Public and Press 
 

Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 
 

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
 
Work of the Committee 2016/17 
 
 
 20 July 2017 Budget Planning Report for SS,Hsg&PH 

Final Major Review Witness Session - Benefit 
Reforms 

Scoping Report for next Major Review 

Work Programme 2017/18 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

 
 

 5 September 2017 Major Review - Benefits Final Report 

Major Review Witness Session - Loneliness and 
Isolation in Older Residents 

Annual Complaints Report 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 
 
  2 October 2017 
 
 

Major Review Second Witness Session - Loneliness 
and Isolation in Older Residents 

Annual Report: Adult Safeguarding Board 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

  
6 November 2017 Update on the Use of Assistive Technology/Telecare 

Line 

2017/19 BCF Plan 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 
 
7 December 2017 
(reserve meeting) 

Adult Safeguarding Board - Report 

Major review Draft Final Report: Loneliness and 
Isolation 

 
 

Page 28



  Part I - Members, Public and Press 
 

Social Services, Housing, and Public Health Policy Overview Scrutiny Committee - 7 December 2017 
 

23 January 2018 Council Budget 2018/19 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

 

27 February 2018 Presentation/Information Item  - TBC 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

22 March 2018 Stroke Review - Update Report 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 6 November 2017
	6 Major Review - Loneliness & Isolation in Older Residents - Consideration of Draft Recommendations to Cabinet
	7 Cabinet Forward Plan
	cabinetforwardplan

	8 Work Programme 2017-18

